
Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  1 of 14 

SELINSGROVE BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2007 - 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Pres. C. Handlan, V. Pres. W. Reuning, C/P D. Anderson, 
C/P J. Herb, C/P W. Hetherington, and C/P D. Mengel 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  C/P M. Inch 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Solicitor R. Cravitz; Mgr. J. Bickhart; Mayor P. Carroll; Police Chief T. Garlock; 
Borough Treasurer Sheri Badman; Recording Secretary Dawne Long; DH&L Representative Ken Stettler; 
Daily Item Reporter Damian Gessel; Borough Residents Joseph and Margaret Siro; Landlord Issues 
Brian Betz, Karen Bowen, Brian Farrell, and Ian Van Pelt; Mrs. Green Jeans’ Owner Stacy Herman; 
Oktoberfest Representatives Ron Cowan and John Nace; SARI Representative Brian Burke; Weiser Run 
Issue Tom Walker; Zoning Issue Jim and Elaine Hummel 
 
OTHERS ABSENT:   None 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 
 
Pres. Handlan called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M.  Mgr. Bickhart called the roll. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MINUTES FROM MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 4, 2007: 
 
Motion by C/P Hetherington to approve the minutes as presented.  Seconded by C/P Reuning. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

VISITORS TO BE HEARD: 
 
Borough Police Chief, Thomas Garlock – Presentation of Police Report for August 2007 – Chief 
Garlock noted that in reevaluating the service report reduction plan, 3/4 of what was removed has been 
resumed.  Some things that can be done without have not been reactivated.  The reporting issues that 
were redone are for easier supervision and for accountability.  There were some gaps and some issues 
that arose during the course and the time of the reduction plan.  The purpose of the plan was to run as 
efficiently as possible and to reduce some services so more things could be done.  It did not work out as 
Chief Garlock had hoped, so the department has gone back to what has worked in the past.  Chief 
Garlock also noted that the department is back on normal operations after the slower summer season.  
On next month’s report there will be increased calls for service and other crime issues.  This is a normal 
seasonal occurrence with the return of the college students and the public school students.  This will 
continue until December, will fall off a bit, and then increase again from January to the beginning of June.  
Chief Garlock stated the department now has one Taser, which will be signed out by the officers.  He 
would like to obtain a reserve unit.  Pres. Handlan asked how much they cost and Chief Garlock did not 
have the figures with him.  The department is still working on use of force issues and policy issues.  
Selinsgrove is one of the last departments to become operational on this.  Chief Garlock wanted to wait 
until their usefulness had been proven, and he also wanted to gauge the public response in the region as 
well as liability concerns.  He stated he is fully aware of what Tasers are capable of, the need for this type 
of instrument for the police to use, and the liability concerns associated with its use.  He is reasonably 
sure everything has been done that can be done with these and they are a useful tool for the department.  
Pres. Handlan stated she had the same concerns and thanked Chief Garlock for proceeding cautiously. 
 
DH&L Fire Company, Ken Stettler – Ken reported there were 20 incidents in September as follows:  
3 automatic alarms, 1 CO alarm, 5 standby assignments, 4 false alarms, 3 good intent service calls, 
1 miscellaneous call, 2 vehicle accidents without extrication, and 1 water rescue recovery.  The incidents 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  2 of 14 

occurred as follows:  3 in Monroe Township, 6 in Penn Township, 9 in Selinsgrove, 1 in Shamokin Dam 
and 1 in Sunbury.  The loss within the jurisdiction was $0.00.  September man hours total 475. 
 
Selinsgrove Area Recreation Inc., Brian Burke – Brian presented Borough Council with the gift of a 
Selinsgrove Swimming Pool cloth banner, made from all-weather fabric from Sunbury Textile Mills, to be 
used at the Borough’s discretion.  Brian reported the pool has turned in their budget request to the 
Borough.  He noted that 41% of the pool memberships came from the Borough and 60% of the daily 
admissions came from the Borough.  The other municipalities that use the pool have seen what their 
annual memberships are and budget requests have been made to every municipality.  Brian also supplied 
budget figures from 2006, 2007 and 2008.  In 2006 the income was $50,700 and the operating expenses 
were just under $84,000.  In 2007 the income was $77,000 and the operating expenses were $88,400.  
The Pool Board now has a clear picture that it takes around $90,000 to operate the pool.  In 2006 the 
combined savings and checking balance was around $60,000.  Due to the expenses over income, at the 
end of 2007 the balance is now $9,600.  The feasibility study cost was $14,000 but the rest of the balance 
used was put toward operating expenses, the contracted services of the YMCA, and putting money back 
into the facility.  Fundraising began two years ago and SPI is holding approximately $8,500 for the Pool 
Board.  Brian stated that the Pool Board has put together a request for funding that is being presented to 
all the municipalities.  The Board will be sending a letter to all the annual pool members within the next 
week or so to give them a snapshot of how the year went and the positive accomplishments in the past 
year, including new YMCA management of the pool, concession stand use, the decision to go non-
smoking for 2008, excellent water quality, the learn to swim program, monthly communications with 
Borough Council, establishing a more structured financial accountability with the accountants, resolving 
the tax concerns and receiving a refund, and starting a group called “Friends of the Pool”.  C/P Anderson 
asked about the YMCA’s fees and Brian stated they charge a straight 20% for their administrative 
expenses.  The Y pays the employees and sends the Pool Board a payroll bill along with documentation 
of hours worked and services provided.  C/P Anderson stated it was beneficial to have the Y involved this 
year, but she felt their administrative costs were quite high.  Brian stated this is the same consistent fee 
that the Y charges for all their outsourcing.  C/P Anderson asked about past rates and the possibility of 
raising them in the future.  Brian noted last year’s membership rate was $150 for a family membership, 
and the single membership was $65.  There were also senior citizen rates and babysitter rates.  Without 
any active membership recruiting, which will be improved upon for next year, memberships this year 
comprised nearly $16,000 of the income.  The Board is considering raising these fees now that things 
have stabilized.  Lewisburg has the highest fees in the area, about $300 for a family membership.  
Sunbury is on par with Selinsgrove.  The daily rate is $3 for a full day which could be increased slightly to 
$3.50.  Pres. Handlan asked if the Pool Board will be giving budget requests to Monroe and Penn 
Townships.  Brian stated that last year the only municipality who formally gave a contribution to the pool 
was Monroe Township, with $10,000.  No one else was solicited.  Dave Stroup coordinated that last year 
and is repeating the solicitation this year.  Bob Soper has appeared before Penn Township supervisors 
this year, Brian communicates with Selinsgrove Borough, and the other eight municipalities on the list will 
be solicited by mail.  The requests will be proportional to the membership and usage from each 
municipality.  C/P Anderson stated her appreciation for the hard work that the Pool Board has put in this 
last year to straighten out the mess.  Pres. Handlan asked if there was anything in the paper noting that 
the tax situation has been resolved and a refund received.  Brian stated it was in the paper at the 
beginning of August.   
 
James and Elaine Hummel, Zoning Issues – Request to amend Zoning Ordinance provisions 
pertaining to “Changes to conforming uses” to eliminate prohibition of returning to a prior non-
conforming use – Jim and Elaine Hummel own a rental property on Orange Street just off Pine Street 
across the railroad tracks from the ATM.  This property is zoned commercial but it has been rented as a 
residential unit for many years, even before the Ordinance was adopted, making it an existing non-
conforming residential use in a commercial zone.  C/P Hetherington stated the property was built as a 
residence for the owners of a grocery store back in the 1950s.  Mgr. Bickhart explained that when the use 
of any property is changed, the applicant must fill out a certificate of occupancy to inform the Borough of 
the change in use.  The Hummels have currently rented the property to a business, which is allowed 
under the Ordinance and for which they got permission from the Borough office.  The business, Galaxy 
Transportation, which does the paperwork and permitting for routing modular housing transporters, has 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  3 of 14 

been there for 11 months and rarely has foot traffic in and out.  Because this changes the usage of the 
property back to a conforming use in the commercial zone, going back to the residential use at some 
future date is not permitted.  Therefore, if the business is still there after one year, under the present 
Ordinance the Hummels will no longer be allowed to rent the property as residential and will have to 
continue with the commercial usage.  This means they have one month to decide whether to stay 
commercial or to ask the present tenant to leave and return to residential rentals.  Mgr. Bickhart stated 
this issue has come up with other property owners in the Borough also.  The Hummels’ property is a small 
house and has no paved parking.  If it remains commercial a paved parking area will have to be put in to 
accommodate the commercial use.  The Hummels are asking for some time to make this decision.  An 
Ordinance change that would allow a period of time, perhaps the length of time to depreciate the required 
investment, for the property to go back to the prior non-conforming use would have to go through the 
Planning Commission.  C/P Anderson stated the point of zoning is for it to make sense, not for it to be 
conflictive for people.  C/P Herb noted this property is in a transitional area.  He stated when these zones 
were put in place no one would have been anticipating businesses being operated out of people’s homes 
by computer.  He suggested referring this to the Planning Commission.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that the 
process that would lead to an Ordinance amendment would take about four months, during which time 
Council could direct the Borough to hold in abeyance any action on the occupancy and thereby grant the 
Hummels a reprieve until the Planning Commission comes back with a recommendation.  Brian Farrell 
stated he has a similar situation, but in reverse.  He has a property in a residentially zoned area that the 
former owner had rented to a business, a commercial haircutting salon, for over a year.  That business is 
now gone and the property is vacant because Brian cannot find another business to rent to and he is not 
allowed to rent it residentially any more.  Any Ordinance change would include everyone in this situation.  
Mgr. Bickhart noted there was another situation similar to the Hummels where Sharon Womer had a 
residential tenant on the ground floor in the central business district, which is an existing non-conforming 
use.  However, no residences are permitted on the first floor of a business district, although the second 
and third floors are fine.  Sharon wanted to rent to a business tenant but then she could not go back to 
residential.  Jim Hummel expressed his frustration at being initially told he could rent to the business and 
now being told he has to make a decision to stay with the business or ask them to leave and go back to 
residential rentals.  He stated they have owned the property for over 20 years.  They first tried renting to 
college students but that did not work out.  They tried renting to families but no one stayed more than a 
year due to the noise and garbage left by the college students walking by.  Now they have a satisfied 
business tenant and they may have to ask them to leave.  He stated if they would stay with the business 
usage and the current tenant leaves, because of the size and configuration of the property the only other 
business it would be suitable for would be a similar one, computerized with little to no foot traffic, and that 
would be very difficult to find. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to refer this to the Planning Commission to examine the flexibility of the current 
Ordinance and to address ways to make it more flexible.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Jim Hummel asked how long it would take until he has an answer.  C/P Anderson stated the next 
Planning Commission meeting will be at the end of October.  This issue may not be able to be discussed 
due to the number of items already on the agenda.  Pres. Handlan noted the Hummels are welcome to 
attend the Planning Commission meeting.  Mgr. Bickhart clarified that Council is asking the Borough to 
hold in abeyance any action on the Hummels’ property until he hears back from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Mrs. Green Jeans, Stacy Heckman – Stacy Heckman, the owner of Mrs. Green Jeans, presented 
Council with two pizzas to eat during their break tonight.  She stated that she has outgrown her present 
location.  She has been working on a deal with Scott Shaffer, the owner of the Selinsgrove Inn, to rent the 
first floor of the building where Burns’ Tae Kwon Do used to be.  Scott is also renovating the second floor 
of the building, possibly for offices.  Stacy would expand her business to include the retail shop, a 
restaurant, and a bakery where her husband would do the baking for her restaurant and for some other 
businesses in town.  Stacy’s plan for her restaurant is to have a “Mrs. Green Jeans Grill”.  It is not a bar, 
but will be an Italian deli and pizzeria with a family atmosphere and not for the college crowd.  She would 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  4 of 14 

like to serve alcohol so therefore she is asking for Council’s endorsement in seeking an economic 
development liquor license from the PLCB.  It was noted that this may be a 2008 license, as Irene’s was 
just issued their license recently.  The application was made in 2006 but the license was issued in 2007.  
No one knows if the license is dated for the application date or the issue date, and whether it is one per 
12-month period from the date of the last license or whether it is by calendar year.  Solicitor Cravitz 
thought it would be calendar year just for ease of bookkeeping on the part of the PLCB.  Stacy noted this 
is not a problem as the renovations to the building are expected to take about eight months, and even if 
they would have to open the restaurant without the liquor license, as long as it comes later she is fine with 
that.  C/P Anderson noted that in the past Council had advertised that this license was available in order 
to be fair to other businesses that may wish to pursue it, since there is only one available per county per 
year.  Stacy stated she and Scott Shaffer had hoped to use the beautiful brick interior of the building, but 
they found that at one time there was a fire in the building so the brick will not be able to be exposed as 
they had hoped.  C/P Reuning asked how the college crowd would be excluded and Stacy replied that 
they would be welcome, but it will not be a hangout for them because it is not a bar and smoking will not 
be allowed.  C/P Mengel asked if there will be enough parking and Stacy stated that Scott will allow her to 
pave a partial lot behind his lot.  She does not know how many parking spaces she would need at this 
point.  C/P Anderson noted that there are some other issues that will need to be addressed for the 
businesses.  Stacy stated the businesses should be able to accommodate between 50 and 60 people 
once the renovations are done.  C/P Mengel noted there is a permit process that Stacy will need to go 
through.  Mgr. Bickhart stated this could be done by the owner of the building or by the tenant with the 
owner’s knowledge.  He also noted that advertising the availability of the economic development liquor 
license is not a requirement of the PLCB, but it something that Council felt was the right thing to do.  He 
stated a decision could be made at the November Council meeting, and Council’s endorsement could be 
given even before the business is fully developed and open, as was done with Irene’s.  Mgr. Bickhart 
stated he will place the ad.  He noted that once Council agrees to endorse a project for the economic 
development liquor license the final decision is left up to the PLCB.  Pres. Handlan stated that she and 
her husband took part in the progressive dinner that was held yesterday, beginning at the Selin’s Grove 
Brewing Company, moving to Mrs. Green Jeans, and ended up at Emma’s.  She stated it was a lovely 
evening and she thanked the businesses for doing this and she hope it continues.  Stacy stated there 
were 22 participants and they hope to do more of these evenings in the future. 
 
Oktoberfest, Ron Cowan and John Nace – Ron Cowan stated that American Legion Post 25 will be 
having an Oktoberfest this weekend, from Friday afternoon until close of business Saturday night, and 
would like to have permission to make a little more noise than usual due to the outside entertainment.  
He stated all the neighbors within a several-block radius, from Sand Hill Road to Sassafras Street, will be 
properly notified.  There will be various types of entertainment, including a German band, a DJ and the 
local band, Chance.  C/P Anderson noted that this is also Homecoming Weekend at the university.  
C/P Reuning asked if Chief Garlock is aware of the Oktoberfest and John Nace replied that a certified 
letter was sent to the Borough police and the state police.  C/P Reuning also suggested for any future 
Oktoberfest that the Legion check with John Shaffer, who is the president of the German Heritage Society 
in the Susquehanna Valley. 
 
Motion by C/P Hetherington to give the Legion permission to proceed with their plans as presented.  
Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PRIOR MEETINGS: 
 
Committee’s recommendation concerning “Rental Unit Occupancy Ordinance” – C/P Mengel stated 
that the committee recommends approval for Solicitor Cravitz to advertise the Ordinance as presented 
with no exemptions except as noted and with the removal of Item #5, which Council received in the 
packets, allowing the option for someone to request an exemption.  C/P Reuning asked how the charge 
for the dormitories will be handled, whether it will be per room or per building.  Mgr. Bickhart noted this is 
something that will be worked out administratively in order to come up with a fair licensing fee because 
the fee schedule was designed with the assumption that dormitories would be exempt.  C/P Mengel noted 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  5 of 14 

that Market Street and High Street Manors are not exempt, but when it comes time for their inspection 
they can present what inspections they have to CK-COG and if CK-COG accepts that as meeting the 
Borough’s guidelines then that can be used.  Pres. Handlan asked if that language is in the Ordinance 
anywhere and C/P Mengel replied that it is not.  Mgr. Bickhart noted that any property owner can get his 
own inspector and does not have to utilize CK-COG, but the inspection must be done to the Borough’s 
Property Maintenance Code.  The decision as to whether what someone has already had done by HUD is 
acceptable to CK-COG is at issue and the Borough relies on the inspectors to make those decisions.  
Solicitor Cravitz noted that this is what Middleburg does.  Mgr. Bickhart advised Council stay out of the 
inspection issue.  The Ordinance is very clear in terms of what the Borough requires, which is an 
inspector with a certificate to certify that he has inspected the property under the Property Maintenance 
Code.  He stated the Borough should not get involved with how the inspector goes about doing that.  
C/P Anderson asked if the inspection paperwork has to go through CK-COG as the administrator of the 
program.  Pres. Handlan asked who the inspection certificate physically goes to.  Mgr. Bickhart replied 
that the paperwork goes to the Borough office.  There was some confusion on the administration of this, 
as C/P Anderson, C/P Mengel and Pres. Handlan had thought that CK-COG was to be the administrator 
of this and Mgr. Bickhart stated that the Borough office was always the intended administrator, with 
CK-COG as a third party inspector and an adviser if Mgr. Bickhart needed help in determining whether 
something meets the Borough’s requirements.  Pres. Handlan stressed that the administrator of this 
should not be the Borough Manager.  C/P Anderson stated she thought CK-COG was designated to 
manage this and a fee would be paid to them to do so, similar to the way the YMCA manages the 
swimming pool.  Mgr. Bickhart stated this could be done, stating there is no reason that Council could not 
delegate this to CK-COG.  C/P Herb asked about putting language in the Ordinance to judge whether a 
HUD inspection is acceptable.  Pres. Handlan stated she would feel more comfortable if that language 
was in the Ordinance.  She also noted that the administration could be worked out later.  Ian Van Pelt, a 
tenant in the Borough, asked whether HUD inspections are free.  Solicitor Cravitz replied that the 
inspections are paid for as part of the annual application as part of HUD’s certification process for public 
housing.  Ian was concerned that if HUD inspections are cheaper some landlords, including his, might 
switch to HUD housing, which is based on income, and he would therefore have to move from his current 
home because he does not qualify for HUD housing.  Brian Farrell asked if anyone followed up with 
obtaining information from Lewisburg, as discussed at the September Council meeting.  C/P Mengel 
stated that Mgr. Bickhart got the information and found that Lewisburg does exclude dormitories.  She 
stated that Bloomsburg does not exclude dormitories.  She noted that each community is different.  Brian 
Betz stated he wanted to make sure that the final draft that he has, which was revised 7/23/07, is in fact 
the actual final draft.  He stated there was some language about an appeal board that did not come 
through in his copy.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that Brian has the correct final draft.  Brian stated there are 
some issues that he would be uncomfortable with if he were singled out, but on the whole he supports the 
Ordinance and feels good about what has been accomplished.  He feels that everyone is being treated 
fairly by the Ordinance.  Brian commented on the economics and C/P Anderson stated that if it were not 
for the university the landlords would not have all those students to rent to.  Brian agreed, but stated he 
has to put a lot of money back into his properties that he rents to students.  He stated the university 
continues to grow, and there are 600 more students now than there were in 1980.  He understands the 
Ordinance is needed and he just wants everyone to be treated equally.  If changes are needed in the 
future, then adjustments can be made.  He stated he feels that this Ordinance is a good starting place.  
Pres. Handlan agreed that Ordinances can be changed.  C/P Anderson stated that is true, but trouble 
arises if it is a bad law.  She asked if the Lewisburg Ordinance excluded anything besides dormitories, 
such as nursing homes.  Mgr. Bickhart stated Lewisburg did not have anything in writing.  What they have 
is a policy of the Borough not to enforce the Property Maintenance Code within the boundaries of the 
university property.  C/P Anderson stated Mike Coyne had called someone and was told that Bucknell 
was inspected by CK-COG.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that Bucknell may have called CK-COG for its own 
inspections, but they were not done because of a requirement of the Ordinance of Lewisburg Borough.  
Pres. Handlan stated she heard Mike Coyne say that he would prefer the dormitories be excluded but if 
that is the way to get the Ordinance passed then the university would support the dormitories not being 
excluded.  C/P Hetherington stated a private individual could come into town, buy property and build 
dormitories.  He stated it is not necessarily limited to just universities or colleges.  C/P Anderson stated 
that would be a rooming house and they are exempt.  C/P Hetherington stated that Lewisburg may have 
some good ideas, but Selinsgrove got most of their information from Bloomsburg and came up with their 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  6 of 14 

own Ordinance to be presented for adoption or rejection.  He stated this has been going on for five years 
now and it needs to be finalized. 
 
Motion by C/P Hetherington to accept the Ordinance as presented and to authorize its advertisement.  
Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 
C/P Reuning stated he feels it is an invasion of the university’s rights on its own property and he cannot 
vote for the Ordinance.  C/P Anderson stated she is concerned about management issues.  
Pres. Handlan stated the administrative process is separate from the Ordinance and Council will work 
with Mgr. Bickhart on that.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the way the Ordinance is drafted leaves Council free to 
designate CK-COG as the administrator of the program.  C/P Herb asked if the motion could be amended 
to include the addition that Solicitor Cravitz has put together to give the Ordinance more flexibility.  
Pres. Handlan agreed, stating that Solicitor Cravitz has put together a rough draft.  Solicitor Cravitz stated 
it would read something to the effect of “certification by a third party may under the discretion of the 
Borough be accepted if it is equivalent under the Property Maintenance Code to HUD”.  C/P Mengel and 
Pres. Handlan suggested changing the language from “acceptance by the Borough” to “acceptance by 
the administrator” because that person has not yet been determined. 
 
C/P Hetherington rescinded his motion and changed his motion to reflect the addition of the rough draft 
as presented by Solicitor Cravitz.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 
C/P Mengel asked hypothetically whether, if the Ordinance did exempt the dormitories and something 
were to happen there, the Borough could be sued.  Solicit Cravitz stated anyone can bring the Borough 
into a suit.  Every college town is different.  It was noted that there are three councilpersons who will not 
be present at the next meeting to vote on the Ordinance after it is advertised following tonight’s vote.  
C/P Mengel suggested changing the next meeting and C/P Hetherington agreed, stating there is a 
possibility he will not be able to attend November’s meeting either.  Pres. Handlan called for a vote on the 
motion to advertise the Ordinance with the changes by Solicitor Cravitz. 
 

AYES:  FIVE (5)  NAYS:  ONE (1) – C/P Reuning  MOTION CARRIED 
 
C/P Hetherington, as a member of the committee, offered thanks to Borough Manager John Bickhart and 
Landlord Brian Betz for all the work they put into this.  This was greeted by applause from the audience.  
Pres. Handlan also thanked the committee for working so hard on this. 
 
COUNCIL TOOK A SHORT BREAK from 8:23 PM to 8:33 PM 
 
Review List of Council Issues – Mgr. Bickhart noted some items have been completed and removed. 
 
SASD has agreed to pay 50% of the engineering costs to investigate the washout along Weiser Run.  
John Coukart has estimated his costs.  After the improvements are defined then it will be the obligation of 
the school district to install them and Coukart will inspect them.  Tom Walker, a resident who lives across 
Weiser Run from the area in question, stated he and his wife deeded some of their property in Weiser 
Run to the school board with a covenant that it would have to be maintained at the maximum design 
capacity.  Tom stated his concern is that the new plan meets or exceeds that, and Mgr. Bickhart stated 
this will be the starting point for the engineers.  The goal is to attain the original design specifications with 
the least amount of modifications.  The engineer will try to utilize what the school district has there, with 
modifications and additional construction.  C/P Hetherington asked if there is a timeframe on this so 
repairs and corrections can be made right away.  There had been some concern in the past about the 
lines freezing.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that work has been done to encase the lines in such a way that they 
are protected.  Survey information will be collected yet this fall and the construction will probably take 
place in the spring.   
 
Mgr. Bickhart stated some letters have been sent out regarding the abandoned vehicles, and there have 
been some immediate responses to this letter.  C/P Mengel asked if the High Street and Mill Street 
properties had letters sent to them yet and Mgr. Bickhart replied the first letters he sent went to the Water 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  7 of 14 

Street area.  C/P Hetherington asked about the vehicle at the Foremans’ and Mgr. Bickhart stated that 
Chief Garlock spoke to him after the September Council meeting and said that he would personally take 
care of the Foreman vehicle.  He advised Mgr. Bickhart not to make contact with them.  C/P Hetherington 
stated this is okay, but he does not want this vehicle to be singled out, stating it should be treated the 
same as any other vehicle in the Borough and notices should be sent so there is something on record.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated that he will try to ensure that whatever Chief Garlock does is equivalent to what 
everyone else must do.  C/P Hetherington stated that he was told by Mayor Carroll that he would talk to 
some of the people who made complaints, and as of Monday the Mayor has not done so.  Mayor Carroll 
stated that he met with the Chief, who told him that letters were being sent, so he did not call anyone.  He 
stated he thought letters were going out to everyone after last month’s meeting.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he 
has not had time to get them all out yet, but they will go out.  C/P Hetherington stated this concerns him 
because people have been complaining about certain vehicles for two years and it has taken too long to 
resolve this.  He stated these issues should be settled within 30 to 60 days.  C/P Mengel asked if there 
were results from Water Street and Mgr. Bickhart replied the results were from the Isle of Que in the alley 
where there were three vehicles.  Two were removed immediately and the people asked for some time to 
sell the third vehicle. 
 
C/P Hetherington reported that at the property across from Coastal Market on the corner of Sassafras 
and Market Streets, where cars were being worked on in the past and fumes were going up into the 
apartments, that they are working on cars there again.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that he had notified the 
property owner to stop working on cars.  C/P Hetherington stated if he notices it again he will notify 
Mgr. Bickhart immediately. 
 
COMMITTEE / COMMISSION / BOARD REPORTS: 
 
FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE:  C/P Inch, Chairman 
 
Payment and Ratification of Bills 
 
Motion by C/P Reuning to pay the bills.  Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

Statewide Tax Recovery, Inc. - Exoneration Requests – None this month 
 
REVISED Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO) Worksheet and the Determination of State Aid for 
the 2008 Uniformed and Non-Uniformed Pension Plan – Mgr. Bickhart noted some changes were 
made since the September meeting due to the decision to hire a part time person as custodian. 
 
Problem with Pump #1 – C/P Reuning stated there is a problem with the pump at Well #1.  The bearings 
are binding and the cost is not known until the pump is pulled out of the ground and examined.  This 
would cost at least $10,000 and could go as high as $55,000.  Mgr. Bickhart reported that Kohl Brothers 
has looked at this and in order to get at the bearings the entire pump must be pulled out of the casing.  
Kohl has provided a progressive estimate of possible costs.  Hopefully the bowl assemblies, the most 
expensive item at $22,500, will not have to be replaced.  This is an emergency situation because this 
pump is relied upon as part of the well pumping.  The Borough used to alternate between Well 1 and 
Well 2, and then the entire load was put onto Well 2.  When the drawdown for Well 2 was within a few 
feet of an action level, whereby steps would need to be taken through DEP because the water was being 
drawn down to an unsafe level, then the Borough took Well 2 offline and stopped using it so hard and it 
did recover.  There is no problem in terms of the aquifer, but Pump 1 definitely needs to be fixed.  This is 
not a budgeted item, but the water company has funds to cover these types of emergency repairs.  
Council’s authorization is needed to work with Kohl Brothers to correct the problems with Well 1. 
 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  8 of 14 

Motion by C/P Hetherington to authorize Mgr. Bickhart to go ahead with the inspection with Kohl Brothers, 
keeping the costs as low as possible but still doing what needs to be done to get the well problems fixed, 
with the cost not to exceed $55,275.  Seconded by C/P Anderson. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Pres. Handlan stated this pump is 30 years old, and she asked how old the others are and if this is a 
problem that can be expected with the other wells.  Sheri noted that the Capital Reserve Water Fund has 
$250,000 in it.  C/P Mengel asked if this is something that will have to go out to bid.  Mgr. Bickhart stated 
it does not because it is an emergency situation and it is a replacement of in-kind equipment.  C/P Herb 
asked if it would have to go out to bid if the Borough discovered they needed to buy a new pump.  
C/P Anderson replied a well could not be down for any length of time, so it would still be considered an 
emergency repair.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that Kohl Brothers have indicated some options should it become 
necessary to replace the bowl assembly.  The Borough would investigate those options, price them out 
and present the options to Council. 
 
PUBLIC FACILITIES & SERVICES COMMITTEE:  C/P Reuning, Chairman 
 
Recommendations concerning proposed 2008 Street and Utility Projects, final selection of scope 
based upon bid prices and available funds, especially sewer and water funds – C/P Reuning stated 
the committee wants to cost out these things to see how they fit into the funds for next year. 
 
Authorize Borough Engineer to proceed with preparation of plans, specifications and bid 
documents for recommended projects, with Alternate Bid items to provide flexibility in selecting 
the final scope of the project, based upon bid prices – C/P Reuning stated the committee needs an 
authorization for the engineer to prepare the costs. 
 
Motion by C/P Hetherington to authorize the Borough Engineer to proceed as noted above.  Seconded by 
C/P Anderson. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Sidewalks – C/P Reuning stated the sidewalks are about 3/4 finished.  Once everyone is back from their 
travels they will proceed. 
 
Authorize Borough Engineer to proceed with the design of required improvements to Weiser Run, 
with SASD agreeing to pay ½ of the engineering costs 
 
Motion by C/P Hetherington to authorize the Borough Engineer to proceed as noted above.  Seconded by 
C/P Reuning. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATION / PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:  C/P Mengel, Chairwoman – No 
Report 
 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS:  C/P Herb, Chairman – No Report 
 
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:  C/P Anderson, Chairwoman 
 
Consider rescinding “Non-Uniformed Employee Handbook, Retiree Health Insurance” policy to 
also extend coverage to a spouse and/or the dependent(s) of an employee who dies while 
employed full-time by the Borough, with the same conditions and procedures, as approved at the 
September meeting, due to the disallowance of this policy by our current insurance carrier – 
C/P Anderson stated that last month Council had approved adding Brian’s widow to the policy but the 
insurer will not honor this.  Therefore, Council needs to rescind last month’s action. 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  9 of 14 

 
Motion by C/P Mengel to rescind Council’s action from last month.  Seconded by C/P Hetherington. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE:  C/P Hetherington, Chairman 
 
Recommendation concerning request from Don Girton, CKCOG Building Inspector, to consider 
one reserved parking space along East side of first block of South Market Street for handicapped 
use only during hours businesses are open.  Chief Garlock has suggested the use of the space 
formerly limited to use by the Borough Police – C/P Hetherington stated the committee was not able 
to meet this past month.  The members talked a bit but have not come up with anything yet.  The 
committee will meet next month without C/P Inch present.  C/P Hetherington states he knows his stand 
on some things, although he does not want to speak for him.  Mgr. Bickhart noted Chief Garlock’s 
suggestion to use the space formerly limited to police cars.  C/P Hetherington’s committee will take this 
into consideration at their meeting.  C/P Herb stated he mentioned the handicapped parking spot 
suggestion to several downtown business owners and they have all been positive about the idea. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION:  Earl Moyer, Chairman 
 
Interested Councilpersons invited to participate in Comprehensive Plan Update process – 
Mgr. Bickhart stated the Planning Commission is in the process of looking at the comprehensive plan for 
the Borough.  No more than two Council people would be welcome to attend along with C/P Anderson to 
participate in these discussions. 
 
Accept, with regret, the resignation of Karel Page – Mgr. Bickhart stated that Karel Page has resigned 
and Council needs to accept with deep regret that she will not be able to serve on the Planning 
Commission.  C/P Anderson suggested sending a card expressing the care and concern of the Borough. 
 
Consider person(s) to serve on Selinsgrove Borough Planning Commission – Mgr. Bickhart asked 
Council to think about a person to fill the vacancy.  More than one person could be suggested, as there 
could be alternates available to serve. 
 
ZONING HEARING BOARD:  Glen Rohrer, Chairman – No Report 
 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION:  Dalton Savidge, Chairman – No Report 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD:  Richard Norman, Chairman – No Report 
 
SHADE TREE COMMISSION:  Karl Maul, Chairman – No Report 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
 
MAYOR:  Pete Carroll 
 
Market Street Festival – Mayor Carroll stated the Market Street Festival was a great success.  He stated 
the dunk tank was a big hit.  More no parking signage enabled the shuttles to operate more smoothly.  
The SPI booth and the Selinsgrove Commons made a big impact on a lot of people.  Mgr. Bickhart did the 
electronics for the sound system all day long.  Pres. Handlan stated over 240 people were shuttled from 
the school parking lot to the downtown.  She stated it was the best year yet for the shuttles.  She also 
noted that she and her husband drove the shuttles all day long, with her husband having six close calls 
and she having three herself.  Mill Street is the only street with no stop signs and many people went 
through the stop signs on the side streets right in front of the vans.  Mayor Carroll stated that one car was 
towed, and the police officers were vigilant in their enforcement of the no parking areas.  C/P Reuning 
stated there was a spot across from the post office with chairs for people to sit down and eat.  He stated it 
would be nice to have a similar area near the Pine Street intersection.  Mgr. Bickhart stated there were 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  10 of 14 

tables and chairs delivered there but they never got set up.  Pres. Handlan also noted that there were no 
yellow-jackets. 
 
Police Department Grant – Mayor Carroll stated that Chief Garlock has moved along with the $20,000 
grant.  The fencing is going up behind the police station, the telephone service has been upgraded, and if 
there are any funds left over there are some flooring issues that need to be resolved in the police station 
where there is old carpeting in the prisoner area.  This should be changed over to some type of vinyl 
flooring that is easier to keep clean. 
 
Halloween Parade – Mayor Carroll reported the Halloween Parade has been organized.  There were 
some issues in the past with the band buses at Sassafras Street.  This year the buses will be parked at 
Loving Care and hopefully the gas station will allow the band equipment bus to park in their lot.  The 
parade will take place October 16, with a rain date of October 17. 
 
Halloween Night – Mayor Carroll stated he will do as was done last year, with the police station open 
from 6:00 to 8:00 p.m. on October 31 for parents to bring in their children’s candy.  Treats will be given 
out and balloon animals made for the kids. 
 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR:  Robert Cravitz 
 
Consider adoption of Ordinance # 759, pertaining to the adoption of regulations pertaining to the 
pruning of trees under the jurisdiction of the Shade Tree Commission – Solicitor Cravitz stated he 
met with Karl Maul this morning and worked out details on this.  Council will be receiving this in the mail 
after Karl reviews it a final time. 
 
Consider adoption of Ordinance # 760, pertaining to Local Services Tax – Solicitor Cravitz stated 
this has been properly advertised.  The tax is $52, with anyone making under $12,000 being exempt.  It 
will be collectible at every pay period with the $52 being divided into the number of available pay periods, 
and then paid quarterly to the Borough. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to adopt Ordinance # 760.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mgr. Bickhart noted that Solicitor Cravitz’s work will probably show up in other municipalities.  
C/P Anderson stated this will most likely be the model because based on what she heard at the budget 
meeting she attended, no one else has figured this out yet.  Pres. Handlan suggested that Sheri keep 
track of the municipalities who are calling for a copy so if Selinsgrove ever needs anything they can be 
called on to reciprocate. 
 
Consider adoption of Ordinance # 761, pertaining to Vacating Mahanoy Avenue, as requested by 
Chris Gemberling – Solicitor Cravitz stated the people who will be impacted by this have been notified 
and were given 30 days to respond.  Now the ordinance needs to be advertised so action can be taken at 
the November meeting. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to authorize the advertisement of the ordinance.  Seconded by C/P Reuning. 
 

AYES:  SIX (6)  NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Update on Intention to Appeal Real Estate assessments for Shane Ulrich and Omega Bank – 
Solicitor Cravitz reported that he has not yet received a copy of the County’s actions on these appeals.  
He spoke with Attorney Tom Clark, who stated the County is preparing to contest the appeals if there is a 
significant lowering of taxes.  The Borough can also appeal this along with the School District, 
independently or together.  The assessment board and the county commissioners will review the appeals 
and decide whether or not to grant them.  Pres. Handlan asked if Shane’s appeal is on the new building 
that he is renovating and Solicitor Cravitz replied that it is.  Mgr. Bickhart stated Omega Bank is appealing 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  11 of 14 

all the parcels including the ATM.  Pres. Handlan asked what the likelihood was of that going through and 
Solicitor Cravitz replied they would probably get a reduction.  He stated eventually there will be a county-
wide assessment, but it would be political suicide to do it. 
 
BOROUGH ENGINEER:  J. A. Coukart & Associates 
 
Update on pending projects – Mgr. Bickhart reported that progress has been made on the Borough’s 
programs.  The final payment on the 2006 Street and Alley program included the $5,500 assessment for 
delay damages.  The contractor has made some overtures about not liking this, but so far it stands.  The 
contractor has been paid what they are due with the liquidated damages withheld.  Sheri noted that 
payments 3 and 4 have not yet been made because they have not been asked for.  Mgr. Bickhart stated 
progress has been made on the rest of the projects.  In the 2007 Utility program they are waiting for a 
pre-fab pressure reducing station which should be in shortly and then the project will be completed.  For 
the 2008 program the engineer was waiting for the authorization that Council gave tonight. 

 
BOROUGH TREASURER:  Sharon Badman 
 
Review Treasurer’s Report for September 2007 -   Pres. Handlan asked if there were any questions on 
the Treasurer’s report.  Hearing none, she stated that it is on file for audit. 
 
BOROUGH MANAGER / SECRETARY / ZONING OFFICER:  Mgr. Bickhart 
 
Non-Police Complaint Update – Mgr. Bickhart noted that he has received a number of complaints.  
Those that he was able to do something about he either has or he will soon.  He stated one involved 
Brian Farrell and Mgr. Bickhart spoke with Brian tonight and he will take care of the issue with his tenant.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated Savidge Realty took care of the bees in the bush on Market and Bough. 
 
Update of PROPERTY TRANSFERS and BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED, Janet Powers, Deputy 
Zoning and Permit Officer – Information only 
 
Reminder concerning 2008 Budget Requests – Mgr. Bickhart reminded Council to have their budget 
requests to the Borough Office by October 12.  C/P Mengel asked if there needs to be a meeting on the 
issues with the building and Mgr. Bickhart replied this could be discussed with the Board as a whole 
during the budget process.  The discussion will be on the process that needs to be started in order to 
make the renovations.  He stated it probably will not be in the budget for 2008.  C/P Anderson noted there 
would be architectural costs but no construction costs in 2008. 
 
September 17, 2007 Letter from DEP pertaining to mandatory curbside collection of leaf wastes, 
including garden residue, shrubbery, tree trimming/branches and other vegetative materials, once 
between October 1 and March 1 and once between March 1 and October 1 – Mgr. Bickhart stated 
that as a responsibility of being a municipality with a population of over 5,000 the Borough is required to 
pick up a couple more things under the recycling program.  The letter from DEP notes that the Borough 
must do two additional curbside collections, but Mgr. Bickhart stated that the administrators of the 
program have told him that the Borough only has to do one more collection.  In the schedule for next year 
a curbside collection of shrubbery, tree trimmings, brush and garden residue will be added.  These 
materials will actually be picked up at the side of the road.  Pres. Handlan stated the Borough’s policy has 
always been not to take soft garden material.  Mgr. Bickhart stated these materials will be picked up and 
included with those materials that are at the compost site.  It will be put into the shredder.  He stated he 
felt the Borough had an excellent program going, with great community response and with curbside never 
being much of a program.  The drop-off was excellent and the roll-offs and improvements to the site were 
to the point where the program was able to go forward as it was, and now this new element has been 
added.  Pres. Handlan asked how the mandate to not dispose of these items in household garbage can 
be regulated.  She asked how anyone would know what was put in a black garbage bag unless someone 
goes through the trash.  Mgr. Bickhart stated this will be discussed when the recycling program is put 
together for next year.  C/P Hetherington asked if the costs for this additional curbside recycling could be 
included in the Borough cleanup fund.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that fund is in good shape and actually 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  12 of 14 

generates a bit of a surplus so there is no financial problem with doing this.  He stated this does open the 
door for the Borough to apply for additional equipment.  Janet can use her application powers to get some 
grant money through this program for the Borough to get another piece of equipment that the Borough 
can use for this program and other things.  Pres. Handlan asked if the fence is being taken down at the 
recycling center.  She said parts of it are missing.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that some of it got knocked down.  
It has been set back up because the fence is a requirement but no money is being put into it.  C/P Mengel 
asked if the SU students are still helping out and Mgr. Bickhart replied they are helping every Saturday. 
 
Reminder concerning PSAB Fall Leadership Conference, October 19-21, 2007, State College – 
Mgr. Bickhart reminded Council of this in case anyone is interested in attending. 
 
Reminder concerning CKCOG Full Membership Meeting, October 4, 7:00 PM, CareerLink Office – 
Mgr. Bickhart reminded Council of this.  Everyone is invited.  Pres. Handlan will be attending as the 
Borough’s representative.   
 
Reminder that C/Ps Anderson, Herb and Inch will be absent from the November 5 meeting; all 
remaining C/Ps must attend for a quorum to be present – Mgr. Bickhart stressed that if something 
happens and a remaining Councilperson cannot attend they should let him know immediately so the 
meeting can be rescheduled. 
 
SELINSGROVE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY – Donald Bottiger, Chairman – No Report 
 
EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY REGIONAL AUTHORITY – Bob Dagle and George Kinney, Chairmen 
 
September 19 Letter from DEP – Mgr. Bickhart reported that ESCRA has agreed to prepare the Act 537 
update on behalf of the member municipalities.  More information will be forthcoming as this process 
moves along.  This is the sewage facility’s plan for dealing with the projected overloads at the treatment 
plant.  The overloads are caused mostly by the imposition of more stringent effluent requirements from 
the Chesapeake Bay Strategy.  C/P Anderson asked if there was something in the information about the 
nitrogen levels when Council approved everything that went with the upgrades to the treatment facility.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated this new issue deals with nitrogen as one of the components.  The treatment plant 
was designed around effluent limitations that ESCRA believed to be correct and when the Chesapeake 
Bay Strategy was published it was more stringent, pushing that parameter into noncompliance.  The 
phosphorus requirement was not anticipated at the time of the upgrades, with no anticipation of treatment 
or limitations.  This is a bigger financial burden than the nitrogen issue, and the letter indicates there is a 
projected five-year overload on organic loading as the third parameter.  This is because the organic 
limitation was also made more critical.  C/P Anderson asked if, in the long run, this will mean more multi-
million dollar upgrades to the treatment facility.  Mgr. Bickhart replied it would mean more money for 
upgrades, but he was hesitant to put a price tag on it.  C/P Anderson stated the Borough may have to 
reconsider their position on rates.  C/P Reuning stated the other municipalities will have more costs with 
this because the Borough is pretty well cleaned up and at capacity.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Borough’s 
share of everything is based upon the flows.  With the metering that is in place the Borough’s actual flows 
will be reflected.  When treatment plant capacity is added to treat more of the phosphorus then the 
Borough will pay its percentage through debt service and the annual fees they pay.  The Borough will 
have to raise sewer rates to generate the revenue to do that.  The proposal for people to purchase 
phosphorus and nitrogen credits is something separate.  That will go with each development going 
forward, so the Borough will not see too much of that because there is not much development potential 
within the Borough.  If ESCRA puts a lot of money into phosphorus treatment to achieve the level rather 
than relying on phosphate credit purchases, then the Borough will share some increased costs with the 
other municipalities.  C/P Anderson stated she hopes the Borough will be in a position to not do a huge 
increase in one year, but make it an incremental increase. 
 
NORTH-EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY JOINT AUTHORITY – C/P Hetherington and Mgr. Bickhart – 
No Report 
 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  13 of 14 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Vision 2020 – C/P Anderson stated that she went to the Vision 2020 meeting for the area that was put on 
by SEDA-COG.  She stated she found it interesting in terms of the state pushing some things relating to 
development.  There were statistics regarding a decrease in population in the city areas and development 
taking place in second class townships, the demand for further infrastructure, what the bill would be and 
how it would be impossible to pay.  She stated this is worth keeping an eye on.  The Borough does not 
have that type of development taking place but it reinforces some concerns about regionalization of 
services, such as police and fire.  She stated there were a lot of references to the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania 10 Keystone Principles, which Mgr. Bickhart got her a copy of.  The plan is to get people to 
reuse existing structures rather than building new.  This will concentrate development and provide 
efficient infrastructure. 
 
SASD Renovations – Pres. Handlan stated she went to the public hearing that the school board held 
concerning the $17.2 million renovations to the elementary school.  She noted that Mayor Carroll was 
there, as were Joe and Margaret Siro.  The turnout was very disappointing, with only about 30 people in 
attendance, most of whom were school administrators and teachers.  There was only a handful of the 
public there.  Marcia Moore was there from the Daily Item.  Pres. Handlan stated she went because she 
saw a notice in the paper that stated what the school board was considering, and one of the items was a 
full court gymnasium.  Two or three years ago the proposal was to build a 1,500-seat stand-alone 
gymnasium.  At that time people spoke out against this.  At this most recent meeting the renovations were 
shown with no auditorium proposed.  There was a cafeteria and a 600-seat gymnasium for a 
Kindergarten through second grade school.  Two of the first grade teachers expressed concern about 
students climbing bleachers when they cannot even get onto the school buses without help.  
Pres. Handlan stated she asked how many other elementary schools in Pennsylvania have this type of 
gymnasium and the architect said there were others, but he did not give a number.  Someone at the state 
level, where the school district took their request for funding, had also questioned the gymnasium 
because Dr. Johnson spoke to the fact that children need a place to play.  However, it was felt by many at 
the meeting that a multi-purpose room could serve the same purpose.  The question was raised as to why 
there was no auditorium and the reply was that the cafeteria could be used.  The bottom line is that during 
the day the students could use the gym for their activities, but after school hours nothing would prohibit 
the school district from using the gymnasium for other purposes.  This proposed renovation will raise 
taxes by 1.8 mills.  C/P Anderson asked if the school board has totally signed off on this plan and 
Pres. Handlan said she felt they had.  Joe Siro agreed, stating there is another project planned for the 
high school that was not mentioned that night.  Pres. Handlan explained that there is another $10 million 
renovation project planned for the high school.  She stated she is all for anything having to do with 
education but she does question the need for a 600-seat gymnasium in an elementary school. 
 
Selinsgrove Inn Water Usage – C/P Mengel asked if this issue has been reviewed.  Sheri replied that it 
was and there are no problems. 
 
Train Station Weeds – C/P Mengel stated that she would like something to be done with the train station 
weeds.  She stated the site is a mess.  She was surprised that Stacy Heckman would want to put her 
business so close to the train station property with the way it looks.  Pres. Handlan stated the Borough 
should never have sold the property without some contingencies.  C/P Hetherington stated the owner was 
to have put in sidewalks and parking within a certain time and he has not done this.  Mgr. Bickhart stated 
he will impress upon the owner the need to do something.  C/P Mengel stated it should be done via letter 
or something in writing.  C/P Reuning stated this has been done in the past and he agrees something 
more needs to be done.  Mayor Carroll stated the owner held off on doing the work because he had 
thought the property was about to be sold.  C/P Hetherington stated the owner seems to have all kinds of 
excuses, including going through a divorce, but nevertheless something needs to be done. 
 



Meeting Date:  October 1, 2007  14 of 14 

MAYOR 
 
Junior Councilperson – Mayor Carroll urged anyone attending the PSAB Fall Leadership Conference to 
talk to the people about a Junior Councilperson coming from outside the Borough.  Mayor Carroll has 
spoken with Harvey Edwards at the high school and with the principal, who referred it back to 
Mr. Edwards.  One of the problems is that it has to be someone from the Borough.  The pool from the 
Borough is quite small and Mayor Carroll would like to see it open to students from outside the Borough.  
However, that would go against the current PSAB guidelines.  He urged any Councilperson attending the 
conference to urge the PSAB to make this change. 
 
OTHERS 
 
Funds at 3/4 of the way through the year – Mgr. Bickhart reported that it is the custom for Sheri to take 
a look at the Borough funds at the 3/4 point of the year.  Everything is in the black and is expected to stay 
there through the end of the year barring any unforeseen expenses. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m. following Motion for adjournment by C/P Hetherington. 
 
 
 
Attachments: None 
 


